



# 2024 Intercessory Prayer Guide

Morning Intercessory Team, Mon.-Fri. 6:30-8:00am

Phone #- 267-807-9500/Code- 695599#

Evening Intercessory Team, Mon.-Sun. 7-8:00pm

Zoom Code- 94091483225

Gideon's Army

P.O. Box 1005

Richmond, TX 77406

gideon@gideonsarmy.cc

# **Table of Contents**

Monday: U.S. and Leadership	4
The Nations Calling	4
Repentance/Reconciliation	4
Intercession/Intercessors	5
Protection	5
Restoration	6
Leadership	6
Election and Integrity	7
Candidates	7
Tuesday: Family and Media	9
The Family	9
Parents	9
Children	10
Household Salvation	10
Media	11
Spiritual Warfare	11
Spreading of the Gospel	12
Truth or Deception	12
Wednesday: Israel	13
The Nation and Jerusalem	13
Leadership	13
Protection	13
Hostages/Prisoners	14
Salvation	14
Regathering of Jewish People	15
Middle Eastern Prophecy	16
Israel and Allies	16
Israel and Adversaries	16
End Time Signs	17

Thursday: The Church and Healing
The Church
Intercessors
Volunteers/Laborers
Spiritual Warfare
Unity
Church Leadership
Healing and Healthcare21
Friday: Youth and Education
Youth
Education23
Acknowledgements
Notes

# INTERCESSORY PRAYER TOPICS WITH SCRIPTURES

# **Monday: The United States and Leaders**

# The Nation's Calling:

**Lev. 25:10**- "And you shall consecrate the fiftieth year, and proclaim liberty throughout all the land to all its inhabitants. It shall be a Jubilee for you; and each of you shall return to his possession and each of you shall return to his family." [Note: This Scripture was engraved on the Liberty Bell in 1751 and was a prophetic word for a 50 state Union; 25 (5x5=double portion grace, John 1:16, Zech. 4:7) years later, 1776, the Declaration of Independence was signed. Last state to join was Hawaii in 1959]

- **Rom. 11:29-** For the gifts and the calling of God are irrevocable.
- **Heb. 1:8-9-** ... a scepter of righteousness is the scepter of Your kingdom. You have loved righteousness and hated lawlessness
- **Isa. 28:17** I will make justice the measuring line, and righteousness the plummet; the hail will sweep away the refuge of lies, and the waters will overflow the hiding place.
- Amos 5:24- But let justice run down like water, and righteousness like a mighty stream.
- **Job 38:22-23-** Have you entered the treasury of snow, or have you seen the treasury of hail, which I have reserved for the time of trouble, for the day of battle and war?
- **Psalm 103:6-** The Lord executes righteousness and justice for all who are oppressed.
- **Psalm 33:12-** Blessed is the nation whose God is the Lord, the people He has chosen as His own inheritance.
- **Isa. 60:18** Violence shall no longer be heard in your land, neither wasting nor destruction within your borders; but you shall call your walls Salvation, and your gates Praise.

# Repentance/Reconciliation:

- **2Chron. 7:14-15** "If My people who are called by My name will humble themselves and pray and seek My face and turn from their wicked ways, then I will hear from heaven, and will forgive their sin and heal their land. Now My eyes will be open and My ears attentive to prayer made in this place."
- **Jer. 2:13-** For My people have committed two evils: The have forsaken Me, the fountain of living waters, and hewn themselves cisterns- broken cisterns that can hold no water.
- **Rev. 2:4-5** Nevertheless I have this against you, that you have left your first love......repent and do the first works......
- **2Cor. 5:16 (racial reconciliation)-** Therefore, from now on, we regard no one according to the flesh. Even though we have known Christ according to the flesh, yet now we know Him thus no longer.
- **John 17:21 (denominational reconciliation)-** that they may be one, as You, Father, are in Me, and I in You; that they also may be ne in Us that the world may believe that You sent Me.

- **Eph. 2:14 (ethnic reconciliation)** For He Himself is our peace, who has made both one, and has broken down the middle wall of separation..
- **Dan. 4:32 (political reconciliation)-** ..until you know that the Most High rules in the kingdom of men, and gives it to whomever He chooses."
- **2Cor. 5:18-20-** Now all things are of God who has **reconciled** us to Himself through Jesus Christ, and has given us the **ministry of reconciliation**, that is, that God was in Christ **reconciling** the world to Himself, .... and has committed to us the **word of reconciliation**. Now then, we are ambassadors for Christ .... we implore you on Christ's behalf, be **reconciled** to God.

# Intercession/Intercessors:

- **Heb. 7:25** Therefore, He is also able to save to the uttermost those who come to God through Him, since He always lives to make intercession for them.
- **Isa. 53:12** ....Because He poured out His soul unto death and He was numbered with the transgressors, and He bore the sin of many and made intercession for the transgressors.
- **Isa. 59:16-19-** Then the Lord saw it, and it displeased Him that there was no justice. He saw that there was no man, and wondered that there was no intercessor, therefore His own arm brought salvation for Him; and His own righteousness it sustained Him.
- **Isa. 58:12** Those from among you shall build the old waste places; you shall raise up the foundations of many generations; and you shall be called the Repairer of the Breach, the Restorer of Streets to Dwell In.
- **Ezek. 22:30** "So I sought for a man among them who would make a wall, and stand in the gap before Me on behalf of the land, that I should not destroy it; but I found no one".
- **Zech. 8:21-** The inhabitants of one city shall go to another, saying, "Let us continue to go and pray before the Lord, and seek the Lord of hosts.
- **Luke 18:1-** Then He spoke a parable to them that men always ought to pray and not lose heart.
- **Isa. 45:11-** Thus says the Lord, the Holy One of Israel, and his Maker: "Ask Me of things to come concerning My sons; and concerning the work of My hands, you command Me.

#### **Protection:**

- Ps. 127:1- "Unless the LORD builds the house they labor in vain who build it; unless the LORD guards the city, the watchman stays awake in vain.
- **Isa. 54:17** "No weapon formed against you shall prosper, and every tongue which rises against you in judgement you shall condemn. This is the heritage of the servants of the Lord, and their righteousness is from Me, "says the Lord.
- **Isa. 59:19-** So they shall they fear the name of the Lord from the west, and His glory from the rising of the sun. When the enemy comes in like a flood, the Spirit of the Lord will lift up a standard against him.

- **Ps. 24:8-** Who is this King of glory? The Lord strong and mighty, the Lord mighty in battle.
- **2Chron. 20:22-** Now when they began to sing and to praise, the Lord set ambushes against the people of Ammon, Moab, and Mount Seir, who had come against Judah and they were defeated.
- **2Kings 6:16** So he (*Elisha*) answered, "Do not fear, for those who are with us are more than those who are with them." And Elisha prayed, and said, Lord, I pray, open his eyes that he may see."
- **Isa. 25:5-** You will reduce the noise of the aliens, as heat in a dry place; as heat in the shadow of a cloud, the song of the terrible ones will be diminished.

#### **Restoration:**

- **Isa. 9:3** You have multiplied the nation and increased its joy; they rejoice before You according to the joy of harvest.
- **Ezek. 12:28** Therefore say to them, "Thus says the Lord God: "None of My words will be postponed any more but the word which I speak will be done," says the Lord God."
- **2Kings 3:17-18** For thus says the Lord: 'You shall not see wind nor shall you see rain; yet that valley shall be filled with water, so that your cattle, and your animals may drink.' **And this is a simple matter in the sight of the Lord**; He will also deliver the Moabites into your hands.
- **Isa. 10:27** It shall come to pass in that day that his burden will be taken away from your shoulder, and his yoke from your neck, and the yoke will be destroyed because of the anointing oil.
- **Nem. 4:6** So we built the wall and the entire wall was joined together up to half its height for the people had a mind to work.
- **Ezra 9:9** For we were slaves. Yet our God did not forsake us in our bondage; but He extended mercy to us in the sight of the kings of Persia, to revive us, to repair the house of our God, to rebuild its ruins, and to give us a wall in Judah and Jerusalem.

# Leadership:

- Isa. 33:22- "For the LORD is our Judge, the LORD is our Lawgiver, the LORD is our King"; He will save us.
- **1Tim. 2:1-3-** "Therefore I exhort first of **all** that supplications, prayers, intercessions, and giving of thanks be made for **all** men, for kings and **all** who are in authority, that we may lead a quiet and peaceable life in **all** godliness and reverence. For this is good and acceptable in the sight of God our Savior, who desires **all** men to be saved and to come to the knowledge of the truth."
- **Rom. 13:3-4-** For rulers (=governing authorities) are not a terror to good works but to evil.... For he is God's minister to you for good. But if you do evil, be afraid, for he does not bear the sword in vain; for he is God's minister, an avenger to execute wrath on him who practices evil.
- **1Kings 10:9** Blessed be the Lord your God, who delighted in you, setting you on the throne of Israel! Because the Lord has loved Israel forever, therefore He made you king to do justice and righteousness.

- **Prov. 21:1-** The king's heart is in the hand of the Lord, like the rivers of water, He turns it wherever He wishes.
- **Zech. 4:9** The hands of Zerubbabel have laid the foundation of this temple; his hands shall also finish it.
- **Isa. 9:6** For unto us a Child is born, unto us a Son is given; and the government will be upon His shoulder.
- **1Kg. 3:9** "Therefore give to Your servant an understanding heart to judge Your people, that I may discern between good and evil. For who is able to judge this great people of Yours."
- **2Chron. 17:16** and next to him was Amasiah the son of Zichri, who willingly offered himself to the Lord, and with him two hundred thousand mighty men of valor.
- **Ezek. 21:27** Overthrown, overthrown, I will make it overthrown. It shall be no longer, until He comes whose right it is, and I will give it to Him.

# **Election Integrity:**

- Dan. 2:21- And He changes the times and the seasons; He removes kings and raises up kings.....
- **Nahum 1:9-** What do you conspire against the Lord? He will make an utter end of it, affliction will not rise up a second time.
- **Job 5:12** He frustrates the devices of the crafty, so that their hands cannot carry out their plans.
- **Ps. 33:10-11-** The Lord brings the counsel of the nations to nothing; He makes the plans of the peoples of no effect. The counsel of the Lord stands forever, the plans of His heart to all generations.
- **Prov. 15:3** The eyes of the Lord are in every place, keeping watch on the evil and the good.
- **Job 34:21-** For His eyes are on the ways of man, and He sees all his steps.
- **2Chron. 16:9-** For the eyes of the Lord run to and fro throughout the whole earth to show Himself strong on behalf of those whose heart is loyal to Him.
- Eccl. 12:14- For God will bring every work into judgment, including every secret thing, whether good or evil.

# Candidates:

- **Titus 2:6** in all things showing yourself to be a pattern of good works; in doctrine showing integrity, reverence, incorruptibility.....
- **1Chron. 12:32** of the sons of Issachar who had understanding (=discernment) of the times, to know what Israel ought to do....
- **Ps. 78:72** So he shepherded them according to the integrity of his heart, and guided them by the skillfulness of his hands.
- **Ps. 51:6** Behold, You desire truth in the inward parts, and in the hidden part You will make me to know wisdom.
- Prov. 20:7- The righteous man walks in his integrity, his children are blessed after him.

- **Ps. 25:21** Let integrity and uprightness preserve me, for I wait for You.
- **Prov. 29:2-** When the righteous are in authority, the people rejoice; but when a wicked man rules, the people groan.
- **1Sam. 16:7-** But the Lord said to Samuel, "Do not look at his appearance or at his physical stature because I have refused him. For the Lord does not see as man sees, for man looks at the outward appearance but the Lord looks at the heart."
- Acts 13:22- "... I have found David the son of Jesse, a man after My own heart, who will do all My will."
- **1Sam. 15:23** For rebellion is as the sin of witchcraft, and stubbornness is as iniquity and idolatry. Because you have rejected the word of the Lord, He has rejected you from being king."
- **2Cor. 11:15-** Therefore it is no great thing if his *(satan's)* ministers also transform themselves into ministers of righteousness.....

# **Tuesday: Family and Media**

# The Family:

- **Gen. 1:27-28-** Then God blessed them and God said to them, "Be <u>fruitful</u>, and <u>multiply</u>, <u>fill</u> the earth, and <u>subdue it</u>; have <u>dominion over......</u>
- **Gen. 12:1-3-** Now the Lord said to Abram: Get out of your country, from your family and from your father's house, to a land that I will show you. I will make you a great nation; I will <u>bless</u> you and make your name great; and you shall be a <u>blessing</u>. I will <u>bless</u> those who <u>bless</u> you and I will curse him who curses you, and in you all the families of the earth shall be <u>blessed</u>.
- **John 2:11-** This beginning of signs Jesus did in Cana of Galilee (a wedding) and manifested His glory; and His disciples believed Him.
- **Jer. 31:1** At the same time says the Lord, I will be the God of all the families of Israel, and they shall be My people.
- **Ps. 68:5** A father to the fatherless, a defender of widows, is God in His holy habitation, God sets the solitary in families.

#### Parents:

- **Job 1:5-** So it was when the days of feasting had run their course, that Job would send and sanctify them *(children)* and he would rise early in the morning and offer burnt offerings according to the number of them all.
- **Malachi 4:5-6-** Behold I will send you Elijah the prophet.....and he will turn the hearts of the fathers to the children and the hearts of the children to the fathers lest I come and strike the earth with a curse.
- James 5:16-17- ...the effective, fervent prayer of a righteous man avails much. Elijah was a man with a nature like ours, and he prayed earnestly that it would not rain and it did not rain on the land for three years and six months......
- **1Jn.2:13-14** I write to you fathers because you have known Him who is from the beginning....I have written to you fathers because you have known Him who is from the beginning....
- **2Tim. 1:5** when I call to remembrance the genuine faith that is in you, which dwelt first in your grandmother Lois and your mother Eunice, and I am persuaded is in you also.
- **Eph. 6:4** And you, fathers, do not provoke your children to wrath, but bring them up in the training and admonition of the Lord.
- **1Pet. 3:7-** Husbands, likewise, dwell with them with understanding, giving honor to the wife as to the weaker vessel and as being heirs together of the grace of life, that your prayers may not be hindered.
- **Ps. 128:3** Your wife shall be like a fruitful vine in the very heart of your house, your children like olive plants all around your table.

Matt. 27:25- May His blood be upon us and our children.

#### Children:

- **Prov. 6:16-17-** These six things the Lord hates, yes, seven are an abomination to Him: a proud look, a lying tongue, hands that shed innocent blood *(the unborn)*.
- **Ps. 139:13-14** For You formed my inward parts; You covered me in my mother's womb. I will praise You, for I am fearfully and wonderfully made; marvelous are Your works, and that my soul knows very well.
- **Exod. 1:17-** But the midwives feared God and did not do as the king of Egypt commanded them, but saved the male children alive.
- **Ps. 127:3** –Behold, children are a gift of the Lord, The fruit of the womb is a reward.
- John 14:18- I will not leave you orphans, I will come to you.
- **Rom. 8:15** For you did not receive the spirit of bondage back to fear but you received the Spirit of adoption by whom we cry out, "Abba, Father."
- 2Sam. 9:11..." As for Mephibosheth, "said the king, "he shall eat at my table like one of the king's sons".
- **1Jn. 2:12-13** ...I write to you little children because your sins are forgiven you for His name's sake....I write to you little children because you have known the Father....
- **Lk. 2:40** And the Child grew and became strong in spirit, filled with wisdom, and the grace of God was upon Him.
- **2Tim. 3:15** and that from your childhood you have known the Holy Scriptures which are able to make you wise for salvation through faith which is in Christ Jesus.

#### **Household Salvation:**

- **Gen. 7:1,7-** <sup>1</sup>Then the Lord said to Noah, "Come into the ark, you and all your household, because I have seen that you are righteous before Me in this generation." <sup>7</sup>So Noah, with his sons, his wife, and his sons' wives, went into the ark because of the waters of the flood.
- **Gen. 45:7** And God sent me before you to preserve a posterity for you in the earth and to save your lives by a great deliverance.
- **Exod. 12:27** that you shall say 'It is the Passover sacrifice of the Lord who passed over the houses of the children of Israel in Egypt when He struck the Egyptians and delivered our households.
- **Acts 16:30-33** <sup>30</sup>And he *(the jailer)* brought them out and said, "Sirs, what must I do to be saved?" <sup>31</sup>So they said, "Believe on the Lord Jesus Christ and you will be saved, you and your household." <sup>32</sup>Then they spoke the word of the Lord to him and to all who were in his house.....<sup>33</sup>And immediately he and all his family were baptized.

**Acts 10:24 44**- <sup>24</sup>And the following day they entered Caesarea. Now Cornelius was waiting for them, and had called together his relatives and close friends. <sup>44</sup>While Peter was still speaking these words, the Holy Spirit fell upon all those who heard the word.

**Acts 18:8**- Then Crispus, the ruler of the synagogue, believed on the Lord with all his household. And many of the Corinthians, hearing, believed and were baptized.

#### Media

# Spiritual Warfare:

- **Eph. 6:12-** For we do not wrestle against flesh and blood but against principalities (targets churches, families, government corporations, merchants), powers [targets government authorities (executive leadership-president, governors, mayors, county judges; lawgivers; judges)], the rulers of the darkness of this age (targets pastors, churches, marriages through witchcraft, sorceries, divinations, curses), and wicked spirits in heavenly places (illegal immigration leading to human, drug, and weapon trafficking through open borders).
- **Eph. 2:2** in which you once walked according to the course of this world, according to the prince of the power of the air, the spirit who now works in the sons of disobedience.
- **Acts 26:17-18-** <sup>17</sup>..to whom I now send you, <sup>18</sup>to open their eyes, in order to turn them from darkness to light, and from the power of Satan to God...
- **Eph. 3:10** to the intent that the manifold wisdom of God might be made known by the church to the principalities and powers in heavenly places according to the eternal purpose which He accomplished in Christ Jesus our Lord.
- **Col. 2:15-** Jesus disarmed principalities and powers and made a public spectacle of them triumphing over them in it (the cross)
- **2Cor. 10:4** The weapons of our warfare are not carnal but mighty in God for pulling down strongholds, casting down imaginations and every high thing that exalts itself against the knowledge of God...

# The Spreading of the Gospel:

- **Matt. 24:14-** And this gospel of the kingdom will be preached in all the world as a witness to all the nations and then the end will come.
- **Isa. 52:7-** How beautiful upon the mountains are the feet of him who brings good news, who proclaims peace, who brings glad tidings of good things, who proclaims salvation...
- **Dan. 12:4-** "But you Daniel shut up the words, and seal the book until the time of the end; many shall run to and fro, and knowledge shall increase."

# **Truth or Deception:**

Matt. 24:4- <sup>4</sup>And Jesus answered and said to them: "Take heed that no one deceives you...

**Jer. 23:26-27**- .....Indeed they are prophets of the deceit of their own heart, who try to make My people forget My name by their dreams which everyone tells his neighbor as their fathers forgot My name for Baal.

Rom. 3:4- Indeed, let God be true and every man a liar.

Num. 23:19- God is not a man that He should lie nor a son of man that He should repent.

**Jn. 8:44..**He (the devil) was murderer from the beginning and does not stand in the truth because there is no truth in him. When he speaks a lie, he speaks from his own resources for he is a liar and the father of it.

**Eph. 4:14**- that we no longer be children tossed to and fro and carried about with every wind of doctrine, by the trickery of men, in the cunning craftiness of deceitful plotting

**Ps. 112:7-8-** He will not be afraid of evil tidings; his heart is steadfast trusting in the Lord. His heart is established and he will not be afraid until he sees his desire upon his enemies.

**Ps. 31:18**- Let the lying lips be put to silence, which speak insolent things proudly and contemptuously against the righteous.

# Wednesday: Israel

# The Nation/Jerusalem:

- **Gen. 12:3** I will bless those who bless you, and I will curse him who curses you and in you all the families of the earth shall be blessed.
- **Deut. 4:33-34-** Did any people ever hear the voice of God speaking out of the mist of the fire, as you have heard, and live? Did God ever try to go and take for Himself a nation from the midst of another nation, by trials, by signs, by wonders, by war, by a mighty hand and an outstretched arm, and by great terrors, according to all that the Lord your God did for you in Egypt before your eyes?
- **Jer. 31:35-36** Thus says the Lord, Who gives the sun for a light by day, the ordinances of the moon and stars for a light by night......."If these ordinances depart from before Me says the Lord, then the seed of Israel shall also cease from being a nation before Me forever."
- **Ps. 122:6-7-** Pray for the peace of Jerusalem: May they prosper who love you. Peace be within your walls, prosperity within your palaces".
- **Lk. 13:34** "O Jerusalem, Jerusalem, the one who kills the prophets and stones those who are sent to her! How often I wanted to gather your children together, as a hen gathers her brood under her wings, but you were not willing!"

# Leadership: Prime Minister, Cabinet, Knesset, Military, Intelligence (Mossad)

- **1Kings 3:9-** Therefore give to Your servant an understanding heart to judge Your people and that I may discern between good and evil. For who is able to judge this great people of Yours?"
- **Ps. 78:72-** So he (David) shepherded them according to the integrity of his heart and guided them by the skillfulness of his hands.
- **Josh. 1:9-** Have I not commanded you? Be strong and of a good courage; do not be afraid, nor be dismayed, for the Lord your God is with you wherever you go."
- **1Sam. 30:8-** So David inquired of the Lord, saying, "Shall I pursue this troop? Shall I overtake them?"
- **Prov. 15:22** Without counsel, plans go awry, but in the multitude of counselors they are established.
- **1Kings12:7-** And they (=elders) spoke to him (=Rehoboam) saying, "If you will be a servant to these people today, and serve them, and answer them, and speak good words to them, then they will be your servants forever."
- **Psalm 133:1-** Behold, how good and how pleasant it is for brethren to dwell together in unity.

# **Protection:**

- **Psalm 127:1-** Unless the Lord builds the house, they labor in vain who build it; **unless the Lord guards the city,** the watchman stays awake in vain.
- Zech. 2:5- "For I" says the Lord, "will be a wall of fire all around her and I will be the glory in her midst."

- **Psalm 34:7-** The Angel of the Lord encamps all around those who fear Him, and delivers them.
- **Deut. 33:27-** The eternal God is your refuge, and underneath are the everlasting arms; He will thrust out the enemy from before you, and will say, 'Destroy!'
- **Isa. 31:5-** Like birds flying about, so will the Lord of hosts defend Jerusalem. Defending, He will also deliver it; pass over, He will preserve it".
- **Ps. 68:20** Our God is the God of salvation; and to God, the Lord, belong the escapes from death.
- **Ps. 125:2** As the mountains surround Jerusalem, so the LORD surrounds His people from this time forth and forever.
- **Esther 9:1a** On the day that the enemies of the Jews had hoped to overpower them, the opposite occurred, in that the Jews themselves overpowered those who hated them.
- **Esther 9:25** but when Esther came before the king, he commanded by letter that this wicked plot which Haman had devised against the Jews should return on his own head, and that he and his sons would be hanged on the gallows.
- **Num. 23:2-** And Moab was exceedingly afraid of the people because they were many and Moab was sick with dread because of the children of Israel.
- **Num. 23:8** How shall I curse whom God has not cursed? And how shall I denounce whom the LORD has not denounced?
- **Joel 3:16** The Lord also will roar from Zion, and utter His voice from Jerusalem; the heavens and earth will shake; but the Lord will be a shelter for His people, and the strength of the children of Israel.

# Hostages/Prisoners: Remembered and Delivered:

- **Isa. 49:15-16-** "Can a woman forget her nursing child, and not have compassion on the son of her womb? Surely they may forget, yet I will not forget you. See, I have inscribed you on the palms of My hands; your walls are continually before Me.
- **1Thess. 2:7** But we were gentle among you, just as a nursing mother cherishes her own children.
- Acts 12:5, 11- <sup>5</sup>Peter was kept in prison but constant (earnest) prayer was offered to God for him by the church. <sup>11</sup>And when Peter had come to himself, he said, "Now I know for certain that the Lord has sent His angel, and has delivered me from the hand of Herod and from all the expectation of the Jewish people."
- **Psalm 68:20** Our God is the God of salvation; and to God the Lord belong escapes from death.
- **1Cor. 10:13-** No temptation has overtaken you except such as is common to man; but God is faithful who will not allow you to be tempted beyond what you are able but with the temptation will also make a way of escape that you may be able to bear it.

#### Salvation:

**Rom. 10:1**- Brethren, my heart's desire and prayer to God for Israel is that they may be saved.

- **Deut. 33:29** Happy are you, O Israel! Who is like you, a people saved by the Lord, the shield of your help and the sword of your majesty! Your enemies shall submit to you, and you shall tread down their high places
- **Zech. 12:10-** And I will pour on the house of David and on the inhabitants of Jerusalem the Spirit of grace and supplication; then they will look on Me whom they pierced. Yes, they will mourn for Him as one mourns for his only son, and grieve for Him as one grieves for a firstborn.
- Jn. 20:27-28- Then He said to Thomas, "reach your finger here, and look at My hands; and reach your hand here, and put it into My side. Do not be unbelieving, but believing. And Thomas answered and said to Him, My Lord and my God."
- **Acts 18:8-** Then Crispus, the ruler of the synagogue, believed on the Lord with all his household. And many of the Corinthians, hearing, believed and were baptized.
- **Isa. 9:2-** The people who walked in darkness have seen a great light; those who dwell in the land of the shadow of death, upon them a light has shined.

# The Regathering of the Jewish People (=May 14, 1948):

- **Jer. 16:15-** For the Lord lives who brought up the children of Israel from the land of the north, and from all the lands where He had driven them. For I will bring them back into their land which I gave to their fathers.
- **Jer. 24:6-** For I will set My eyes on them for good, and I will bring them back to this land; I will build them and not pull them down, and I will plant them and not pluck them up.
- **Zech. 8:7-8-** "Thus says the Lord of hosts: 'Behold, I will save My people from the land of the east and from the land of the west. I will bring them back, and they shall dwell in the midst of Jerusalem. They shall be My people and I will be their God, in truth and righteousness'.
- **Isa. 43:6** I will say to the north, 'Give them up!' And to the south, 'Do not keep them back!' Bring My sons from afar, and My daughters from the ends of the earth. Everyone who is called by My name, whom I have created for My glory; I have formed him, yes, I have made him.
- **Isa.11:12** He will set up a banner for the nations, and will assemble the outcasts of Israel, and gather together the dispersed of Judah from the four corners of the earth.
- Amos 9:14-15- "I will bring back the captives of My people Israel; they shall build the waste cities and inhabit them; they shall plant vineyards and drink wine from them; they shall also make gardens and eat fruit from them. I will plant them in their land, and no longer shall they be pulled up from the land I have given them," say the Lord your God.
- Acts 15:16-17- "After this I will return and will rebuild the tabernacle of David, which has fallen down, I will rebuild its ruins and I will set it up; So that the rest mankind may seek the Lord, even all the Gentiles who are called by My name, Says the Lord who does all these things."
- **Ezekiel 37:25-** "Then they shall dwell in the land that I have given to Jacob My servant, where your fathers dwelt; and they shall dwell thee, they, their children, and their children's children, forever.."

Matt. 24:32-33- Now learn this parable from the fig tree (=Israel): When its branch has already become tender and puts forth leaves you know that summer is near. So you also when you see all these things know that He is near- at the doors. I say to you, this generation shall by no means pass away till all these things take place.

**Joel 2:22b-23a-..** the fig tree and the vine yield their strength. Be glad then, you children of Zion, and rejoice in the Lord your God..

Middle Eastern Prophecy In 2018, President Trump recognized Jerusalem as the capital of Israel, seventy years after Israel became a nation again in 1948. In 2020 (70 years after Israel's rebirth), the Abraham Accords formalized relations between Israel and the United Arab Emirates, Bahrain, Morocco, and Sudan. President Trump and Prime Minister Netanyahu spearheaded the initiative. These two prophetic events have set in motion the realignment of the Middle East as written in the Scriptures. It is also prophetic that Saudi Arabia (Dedan) will also join these nations. In July 2022, Saudi Arabia issued a proclamation that Israeli airlines can fly in Saudi airspace. At the same time, the trilateral powers of Russia, Turkey, and Iran strengthened their ties with each other.

# Israel and Allies:

- **Lk. 21:28** Now when these things begin to happen, look up and lift up your heads because your redemption draws near."
- **Ezek. 38:7-** "Prepare yourself and be ready, you and all your companies (=assemblies) that are gathered about you; and be a guard for them."
- **Ezek. 38:13** Sheba *(=Yemen)*, Dedan *(=Saudi Arabia)*, the merchants of Tarshish (south of Spain), and all their young lions will say to you *(=Gog)*, 'Have you come to take plunder? Have you gathered your army to take booty, to carry away silver and gold, to take away livestock and goods, to take great plunder?
- **Ezek 39:7** So I will make My holy name known in the midst of My people Israel, and I will not let them profane My holy name anymore.
- **1Sam.14:6-** "...for nothing restrains the Lord from saving by many or by few."
- **Zech. 4:6** So he answered and said to me: "This is the word of the Lord to Zerubbabel: 'Not by might nor by power, but by My Spirit,' says the Lord of hosts.
- **1Chron.21:2-3-** So David said to Joab and to the leaders of the people, "Go, number Israel from Beersheba to Dan, and bring the number of them to me that I may know it." And Joab answered "May the Lord make His people a hundred times more than they are...Why should he be the cause of guilt in Israel."
- **1Kings12:7-** And they (=elders) spoke to him (=Rehoboam) saying, "If you will be a servant to these people today, and serve them, and answer them, and speak good words to them, then they will be your servants forever."

#### **Israel and Adversaries:**

Ezek. 38:2-3,5- "Son of man, set your face against Gog (=prince), of the land of Magog (=Russia), the prince of Rosh (=Russia/Iran), Meschech (=Turkey) and Tubal (=Turkey), and prophesy against him, and say, 'Thus says the Lord God: "Behold, I am against you, O Gog, the prince of Rosh (=Russia/Iran), Meschech (=Turkey) and

Tubal *(=Turkey)*. <sup>5</sup>Persia *(Iran/Iraq)*, Ethiopia and Libya are with them....; Gomer *(=E. Turkey)* and all its troops; the house of Togarmah *(=Turkey near Syria)*.....

**Ezek. 38:18, 22-** <sup>18</sup>And it will come to pass at the same time, when Gog comes against the land of Israel," says the Lord God, "that My fury will show in My face. For in My jealously and in the fire of My wrath I have spoken." <sup>22</sup>And I will bring him to judgement with pestilence and bloodshed; I will rain down on him, on his troops, and on the many peoples who are with him, flooding rain, great hailstones, fire, and brimstone.

**Ezek. 38:7b-8**- Then the nations shall know that I am the Lord, the Holy One of Israel. Surely it is coming and it shall be done," says the Lord God. "This is the day of which I have spoken.

# **End Time Signs**

**Luke 21:28-** "Now when these things begin to happen, look up and lift up your heads, because your redemption draws near."

Matt. 24:37- But as the days of Noah were, so also will the coming of the Son of Man be. For as in the days before the flood, they were eating and drinking, marrying and giving in marriage until the day that Noah entered the ark....

**2Peter 2:5**- and did not spare the ancient world but saved Noah, one of eight people, a preacher of righteousness, bringing in the flood on the world of the ungodly....

**1Thess. 2:1-3-** Now brethren concerning the coming of our Lord Jesus Christ and our gathering *(=rapture)* together to Him, we ask you, not to be soon shaken in mind or troubled, either by spirit or by word or by letter.. Let no one deceive you by any means...

# **Thursday: The Church and Healing**

#### The Church:

- **John 19:34** But one of the soldiers pierced His side with a spear, and immediately blood and water came out. (Note: *The church was birthed when His side was pierced even as the woman was taken out of the side of the man in the Garden of Eden*).
- **Acts 2:4** And they were all filled with the Holy Spirit and began to speak with other tongues as the Spirit gave them utterance.
- **Heb. 10:25** not forsaking the assembling of ourselves together, as is the manner of some, but exhorting one another, and so much the more as you see the Day approaching.
- **2Chron. 7:14** If My people who are called by My name shall humble themselves and pray and seek My face and turn from their wicked ways then I will hear from heaven and will forgive their sin, and heal their land.
- Ps. 122:1- I was glad when they said to me, "Let us go into the house of the Lord."
- **Gen. 26:22-** And he moved from there and dug another well, and they did not quarrel over it. So he called its name Rehoboth, because he said, "For now, the Lord has made room for us, and we shall be fruitful in the land.
- **Jude 20** But you beloved, building yourselves up on your most holy faith, praying in the Holy Spirit, keep yourselves in the love of God looking for the mercy of our Lord Jesus Christ unto eternal life.
- ..1Chron. 16:7-36- ..When they went from one nation to another; and from one kingdom to another people, He permitted no man to do them wrong; Yes, He rebuked kings for their sakes saying, "Do not touch My anointed ones (=Christians) and do My prophets no harm.."

#### Intercessors:

- Matt. 26:30-31- Then He came to the disciples and found them sleeping, and said to Peter, "What! Could you not watch with Me one hour? Watch and pray, lest you enter into temptation. The spirit is indeed is willing, but the flesh is weak.
- **Job 16:21** Oh that one might plead for a man with God, as a man pleads for his neighbor.
- **Job 33:23-** If there is a messenger for him, a mediator, one among a thousand, to show man His uprightness.
- **1Chron. 29:11** My sons, do not be negligent now, for the Lord has chosen you to stand before Him, to serve Him, and that you should minister to Him and burn incense.
- **Acts 16:25** But at midnight Paul and Silas were praying and singing hymns to God and the prisoners were listening to them.
- **Heb. 7:25** Therefore, He is also able to save to the uttermost those who come to God through Him, since He always lives to make intercession for them.

- **Isa. 59:16-19-** Then the Lord saw it, and it displeased Him that there was no justice. He saw that there was no man, and wondered that there was no intercessor, therefore His own arm brought salvation for Him; and His own righteousness it sustained Him.
- **Ezek. 22:30** So I sought for a man among them who would make a wall and stand in the gap before Me on behalf of the land, that I should not destroy it; but I found no one.
- Job 9:33- Nor is there any mediator between us, who may lay his hand on us both
- 17im. 2:5- For there is one God and one Mediator between God and men, the Man Christ Jesus.
- **Isa. 58:12** "Those from among you shall build the old waste places; you shall raise up the foundations of many generations; and you shall be called the Repairer of the Breach, the Restorer of Streets to Dwell in."
- Mal. 3:16- Then those who feared the Lord spoke to one another and the Lord listened and heard them...
- **1John 5:14-15** Now this is the confidence that we have in Him, that if we ask anything according to His will He hears us. And if we know that He hears us, whatever we ask, we know that we have the petitions that we have asked of Him.

# **Volunteers/Laborers:**

- **Ps. 110:3** Your people shall be volunteers in the day of Your power; in the beauties of holiness, from the womb of the morning.
- **Judges 5:2. 9-** When the leaders lead in Israel, when the people willingly offer (=volunteer) themselves, Bless the Lord. My heart is with the rulers of Israel who offered themselves willingly (=volunteer) with the people, Bless the Lord.
- **2Chron. 17:16** and next to him was Amasiah the son of Zichri, who willingly offered (=volunteer) himself to the Lord and with him two hundred thousand mighty men of valor.
- **Philemon 14-** But without your consent I wanted to do nothing, that your good deed might not be by compulsion, as it were, but voluntary.
- **Matt. 9:37-38-** Then He said to His disciples, "The harvest truly is plentiful, but the laborers are few. Therefore pray the Lord of the harvest to send out laborers into His harvest."

# Spiritual Warfare:

- **Rev. 12:11** And they overcame him *(the accuser)* by the blood of the Lamb, and by the word of their testimony, and they did not love their lives to the death.
- **1Chron.16:21-22** He permitted no man to do them wrong; Yes, He rebuked kings for their sakes, Saying, "Do not touch My anointed ones and do My prophets no harm."
- **1John 5:18** We know that whoever is born of God does not sin; but he who has been born of God guards himself and the wicked one does not touch him.

Acts 26:18- to open their eyes, in order to turn them from darkness to light and from the power of satan to God, that they may receive forgiveness of sins and an inheritance among those who are sanctified by faith in Me.

**Jer. 51:20-** You are My battle-ax and weapons of war: For with you I will break the nation in pieces; with you I will destroy kingdoms.

**Isa. 41:15**- "Behold, I will make you into a new threshing instrument with sharp teeth (=a master of mouths); you shall thresh the mountains and beat them small, and make the hills like chaff."

**2Cor. 10:4-5**- For the weapons of our warfare are not carnal but mighty in God for pulling down strongholds casting down arguments and every high thing that exalts itself against the knowledge of God...

**Isa. 59:19-20**- So they shall fear the name of the Lord from the west, and His glory from the rising of the sun. When the enemy comes in like a flood, the Spirit of the Lord will lift up a standard against him.

**2Chron. 20:22-** Now when they began to sing and to praise, the Lord set ambushes against the people of Ammon, Moab, and Mount Seir, who had come against Judah and they were defeated.

#### **Unity:**

**Ezra 3:1-** And when the seventh month had come, and the children of Israel were in the cities, the people gathered together as one man to Jerusalem.

**Eph. 2:14**- For He Himself is our peace, who has made both one, and has broken down the middle wall of separation..

**2Chron. 34:32**- And he (*king Josiah*) made all who were present in Jerusalem and Benjamin take a stand. So the inhabitants of Jerusalem did according to the covenant of God, the God of their fathers.

**Eph. 4:3**- Endeavoring to keep the unity of the Spirit in the bond of peace.

Ps. 133:1- Behold, how good and how pleasant it is for brethren to dwell together in unity.

**John 17:17**- Sanctify them by Your truth. Your word is truth.

**John 17:21-** that they may be one as You, Father, are in Me, and I in You, that they also may be one in Us and that the world may believe that You sent Me.

**2Cor. 5:16**- Therefore, from now on, we regard no one according to the flesh. Even though we have known Christ according to the flesh, yet now we know Him thus no longer.

# Church Leadership:

**1Sam. 16:13**- Then Samuel took the horn of oil and anointed him *(David)* in the midst of his brothers; and the Spirit of the Lord came upon David from that day forward.

**1Sam. 26:9**- But David said to Abishai, "Do not destroy him; for who can stretch out his hand against the Lord's anointed and be guiltless?"

- **John 21:15-17-** ..Simon....do you love Me...Feed My lambs. Simon...do you love Me...Feed My sheep...Simon...Do you love me...Feed My sheep.
- **Acts 4: 13-** Now when they saw the boldness of Peter and John, and perceived that they were uneducated and untrained men, they marveled. And they realized that they had been with Jesus.
- **Dan. 11:32** Those who do wickedly against the covenant he shall corrupt with flattery, but the people who know their God shall be strong, and carry out great exploits.
- Acts 4:18- So they called them and commanded them not to speak at all nor teach in the name of Jesus. But Peter and John answered and said to them, "Whether it is right in the sight of God to listen to you more than to God, you judge. For we cannot but speak the things which we have seen and heard."
- Acts 4:29-31- Now Lord, look on their threats, and grant to Your servants that with all boldness they may speak Your word, by stretching out Your hand to heal, and that signs and wonders may be done through the name of Your holy Servant Jesus." And when they had prayed, the place where they were assembled together was shaken; and they were all filled with the Holy Spirit, and they spoke the word of God with boldness.
- **Isa. 51:7-** Listen to Me, you who know righteousness, you people in whose heart is My law. Do not fear the reproach of men, nor be afraid of their insults.
- **Dan. 6:10** Now when Daniel knew that the writing was signed he went home. And in his upper room, with his windows open toward Jerusalem he knelt down on his knees three times that day and prayed and gave thanks before his God as was his custom since early days.
- Acts 16:25-26- But at midnight Paul and Silas were praying and singing hymns to God and the prisoners were listening to them. Suddenly there was a great earthquake, so that the foundations of the prison were shaken, and immediately all the doors were opened and everyone's chains were loosed.
- **Luke 22:31-32** And the Lord said, "Simon, Simon! Indeed, Satan has asked for you, that he may sift you as wheat. But I have prayed for you, that your faith should not fail; and when you have returned to Me, strengthen your brethren.

# Healing/Healthcare:

- **Ps. 30:2-** O Lord my God, I cried out to You, and You healed me.
- Matt. 8:16-17- And He cast out the spirits with a word and healed all who were sick, that it might be fulfilled which was spoken by Isaiah the prophet, saying: "He Himself took our infirmities and bore our sicknesses."
- **Acts 10:38-** how God anointed Jesus with the Holy Spirit and with power, who went about doing good and healing all who were oppressed by the devil for God was with Him.
- **Heb. 2:14** ..that through death He (Jesus) might destroy him who had the power of death, that is, the devil.
- 1Jn. 3:8- .. For this purpose the Son of God was manifested that He might destroy the works of the devil.

- Acts 3:6-8- Silver and gold I do not have, but what I do have I give you; In the name of Jesus Christ of Nazareth, rise up and walk". And he took him by the right hand and lifted him up and immediately his feet and ankle bones received strength. So he leaping up.....walking and leaping and praising God.
- **Exod. 15:26** For I Am the Lord who heals you.
- **Ezek. 47:1,9**...and there was water flowing from under the threshold of the temple toward the east,.... And it shall be that every living thing that moves, wherever the rivers go, will live. There will be a very great multitude of fish (=men), because these waters go there; for they will be healed, and everything will live wherever the river goes.
- **John 7:38** He who believes in Me, as the Scripture has said, out of his heart will flow rivers of living water. But those He spoke concerning the Spirit, whom those believing in Him would receive...
- **1Cor. 6:16-** Do you not know that your body is the temple of the Holy Spirit who is in you.....
- **Isa. 58:8** Then your light shall break forth like the morning, your healing shall spring forth speedily, and your righteousness go before you.
- **Luke 8: 43,44,47** Now a woman, having a flow of blood for twelve years, who had spent all her livelihood on physicians and could not be healed by any, came from behind and touched the border of His garment. And immediately her flow of blood stopped...for she had touched Him and how she was healed immediately.
- **Ps. 103:1-3** Bless the Lord, O my soul; and all that is within me, bless His holy name! Bless the Lord, O my soul, and forget not all His benefits: Who forgives all your iniquities, and Who heals all your diseases.
- Ps. 107:20- He sent His word and healed them, and delivered them from their destructions.
- **Rom. 8:11** But if the Spirit of Him who raised Jesus from the dead dwells in you, He who raised Christ from the dead will also give life to your mortal bodies through His Spirit who dwells in you.
- **3John 2** Beloved I pray that you may prosper in all things and be in health just as your soul prospers.

# **Friday: Youth and Education**

#### Youth:

- **1Jn. 2:13-14-** I write to you young men because you have overcome the wicked one.... I have written to you, young men because you are strong and the word of God abides in you.
- John 14:18- I will not leave you orphans; I will come to you.
- **Rom. 8:15** For you did not receive the spirit of bondage again back to fear, but you received the Spirit of adoption by whom we cry out, "Abba, Father."
- **Dan. 1:20** And in all matters of wisdom and understanding about which the king examined them, he found them ten times better than all the magicians and astrologers who were in all his realm.
- **Lk. 2:52** And Jesus increased in wisdom and stature and in favor with God and man.
- 2Tim. 2:1- You therefore, my son, be strong in the grace that is in Christ Jesus.
- **2Tim. 2:22** Flee also youthful lusts; but pursue righteousness, faith, love, peace with those who call on the Lord out of a pure heart.
- **2Chron. 34:3-** For in the eighth year of his reign while he was still young, **he began to seek the God** of his father David; and in the twelfth year **he began to purge Judah and Jerusalem** of the high places, the wooden images, the carved images, and the molded images.
- **2Tim1:5-6-** When I call to remembrance the genuine faith that is in you, which dwelt first in your grandmother Lois and your mother Eunice, and I am persuaded is in you also. Therefore I remind you to stir up the gift of God which is in you through the laying on of my hands. For God has not given you the spirit of fear but of power, of love and of a sound mind.
- **Eccl. 12:1** Remember now your Creators (=Elohim) in the days of your youth, before the difficult days come.
- Ps. 119:9- How can a young man cleanse his way? By taking heed according to your word.
- John 17:17- Sanctify them by Your truth, Your word is truth.
- **Joel 2:28** And it shall come to pass afterward that I will pour out My Spirit on all flesh; your sons and daughters shall prophesy, your old men shall dream dreams, your young men shall see visions.

#### **Education:**

Dan. 1:6- Now from among those of the sons of Judah were Daniel, Hannaniah, Mishael and Azariah To them the chief of the eunuchs gave names: he gave Daniel (=God is My Judge) the name Belteshazzar (=lady protect the king), Hannaniah (=Jah is gracious), to Shadrach (=the command of Aku, the moon god), Mishael (=who is El?), to Meschach (=who is as Aku?), and Azariah (=helped of Jah) to Abed-Nego (servant or worshipper of Nego). (Change identity)

- **Dan. 1:8-** But Daniel purposed in his heart that he would not defile himself with the portion of **the king's delicacies** nor with the wine which he drank; therefore he requested of the chief of the eunuchs that he might not defile himself. (*Change the diet/food*)
- Dan. 1:4-5- Young men in whom there was no blemish but good-looking, gifted in all wisdom, possessing knowledge and quick to understand who had the ability to serve in the king's palace and whom they might teach the language and literature of the Chaldeans. And the king appointed for them a daily provision for the king's delicacies and of the wine which he drank, and three years of training for them, so that at the end of that time they might serve before the king. (Change the education).
- **1John 2:16** For all that is in the world- the lust of the flesh, the lust of the eyes, and the pride of life- is not of the Father but is of the world. (=delicacies of Babylon, i.e. the world).
- **Isa. 54:13** All your children shall be taught by the Lord and great shall be the peace of your children.
- Ps. 71:17- O God, You have taught me from my youth and to this day I declare Your wondrous works.
- **Deut. 6:6-7** And these words which I command you today shall be in your heart. You shall teach them diligently to your children and shall talk of them when you sit in your house, when you walk by the way. When you lie down, and when you rise up.
- **Deut. 11:19-** You shall teach them (*God's word*) to your children, speaking of them, when you sit in your house, when you walk by the way, when you lie down and when you rise up.
- **Dan. 1:17** As for these four young men, God gave them knowledge and skill in all literature and wisdom; and Daniel had understanding in all visions and dreams.
- **Dan. 1:20** And in all matters of wisdom and understanding about which the king examined them, he found them ten times better than all magicians and astrologers who were in all his realm.
- **2Tim. 3:15** and that from childhood you have known the Holy Scriptures which are able to make you wise for salvation through faith which is in Christ Jesus.
- **1Jn. 2:27** But the anointing which you have received from Him abides in you, and you do not need that anyone teach you; but as the same anointing teaches you concerning all things, and is true.....

# Acknowledgements

"Again I say to you, that if two of you agree on earth concerning anything that they ask, it will be done for them by My Father in heaven. For where two or three are gathered together in My name, I am there in the midst of them." (Matthew 18:19-20).

Then He came to the disciples and found them sleeping and said to Peter, "What! Could you not watch and pray with Me one hour?" (Matthew 26:40).

It is God's heart for His people to partner with Him in prayer. Partnerships in the kingdom of God are vital. The Holy Spirit connected Ask Jesus Now ministries (AJN) with iPray on Campus (iPOC) in 2013 and over the past 10 He has established this partnership through intercessory prayer. This prayer guide is a compilation of Scriptures that the Holy Spirit has revealed to us during intercessory prayer.

AJN is very thankful to the leadership to Gideon's Army and iPOC, leadership, Pastors Gideon and Sarah Stanley. They have led this prayer effort for many years both in the U.S. and India. We are especially grateful to Ms. Grace Stanley also known as "Mama Grace." Her heart for the Lord is precious and we have been so privileged to have partnered with her especially in the morning intercessory prayer times. The Lord has been so faithful to raise other intercessors throughout these years to join us in prayer in the morning or evening and a heartfelt gratitude to each and every one of them.

If you have acquired this prayer guide than it is likely that you have a call for intercessory prayer. We encourage you to take the next step and join us in prayer by using the contact information on the front page. It is our prayer that the Lord raise up many intercessors for such a time as this and that the Holy Spirit reveals to them the purpose of an intercessor as found in Isaiah 58:12- **Those from among you shall build old waste places; you shall raise up the foundations of many generations; and you shall be called the Repairer of thee Breach and the Restorer of Streets to Dwell In.** 





